
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 

Date: 16th November 2022 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Council Agenda – 24th November 2022 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Council will be held at 6.45 pm on Thursday, 
24th November 2022 in The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Corney Place, Penrith, CA11 
7QF. 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered. 
 

3   Minutes   
 

RECOMMENDATION: that the public minutes Cl117/09/22 to Cl/127/09/22 of the 
meeting of Council held on the 22nd September 2022 be confirmed and signed as a 
correct record of those proceedings. 
 

4   Chair's Announcements   
 

5   Questions by the Public   
 

To receive questions from the public under Rule 10 of the Constitution. 
 

6   Questions by Members   
 

To receive questions from Members under Rule 12 of the Constitution. 
 

7   Motions on Notice   
 

To consider motions on notice under Rule 13 of the Constitution. 
 

8   Allocation of Seats on Committees and Working Groups   
 

Please note: this report will be sent to follow. 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 2 

9   Single Site Programme  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

To consider report no: DCE55/22 of the Deputy Chief Executive and Interim Director 
of Resources, which seeks to provide an update on the construction programme for 
Voreda House and to identify funding for its completion. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that Council: 
 
1. Notes progress on the delivery of the key project objectives. 

 
2. Approves the variation in the capital programme to enable the completion   of the 

project as detailed in section 8.3 of the report. 
 
3.  Approves the amendment in funding as set out in 8.5 of the report. 
 

10   Leisure Contract Pressures  (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

To consider report no: DoR91/22 of the Interim Director of Resources, which seeks 
to consider pressures identified by Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) and consider 
making an additional one off payment to support them given the significant 
additional energy costs they have borne due the current economic circumstances. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
It is recommended that the Council: 
 
1. Approve a one off payment of £325,000 to GLL, in recognition of the additional 

energy costs that they have borne in 2022/23. 
 

2. The additional payment to be funded by a combination of earmarked reserve 
(£200k) and general reserve (£125k). 

 

11   Q4 2021/2022 Revenue and Capital Slippage  (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

To consider report no: DoR87/22 of the Interim Director of Resources, which seeks 
that Council approve the slippage in Revenue and Capital budgets from 2021-22 to 
2022-23. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Council is recommended to: 
 
1. Approve the slippage of Revenue budgets of £206k from 21/22 to 22/23 as set 

out in Section 3.5 and endorsed by Cabinet. 
 

2. Approve the slippage of Capital budgets of £1,355k from 21/22 to 22/23 as set 
out in Section 3.11 and endorsed by Cabinet. 

 
 
 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

12   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   
 

The next scheduled meeting of Council be confirmed as Thursday, 26th January 
2023. 
 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 

 
 
I Frost 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
*Democratic Services Contact: Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 
or telephone: 01768 212266 
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chair – Councillor D Banks (Independent Alliance Group) 
Vice Chair – Councillor M Eyles (Liberal Democrat Group) 
 
Councillors 

A Armstrong, Conservative Group 
C Atkinson, Conservative Group 
P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
R Briggs, Conservative Group 
R Burgin, Liberal Democrat Group 
I Chambers, Conservative Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
A Connell, Liberal Democrat Group 
J Derbyshire, Liberal Democrat Group 
P Dew, Conservative Group 
H Fearon, Conservative Group 
K Greenwood, Independent Alliance Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Holden, Liberal Democrat Group 
S Lancaster, Independent Group 
D Lawson, Green Group 
J C Lynch, Independent 
 

E Martin, Independent 
N McCall, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group 
G Nicolson OBE, Conservative Group 
W Patterson, Independent Alliance Group 
J Raine, Conservative Group 
M Robinson, Independent Alliance Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
M Rudhall, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Ryland, Independent Group 
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group 
G Simpkins, Liberal Democrat Group 
L Sharp, Labour Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
V Taylor, Liberal Democrat Group 
A Todd, Conservative Group 
M Tonkin, Independent Alliance Group 
D Wicks, Conservative Group 
 

 

mailto:cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk


www.eden.gov.uk 4 

Standing Deputies 

  
 

  
 

Please Note: Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
this meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) and 
as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the public 



 
1 

Report No:  DCE55/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 
24 November 2022 

Single Site Programme 
Voreda House Project Business Case and Construction 

Progress Report 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Deputy Chief Executive and Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To provide an update on the construction programme for Voreda House and 
to identify funding for its completion. 

2. Recommendation 

It is recommended that Council: 

2.1 Notes progress on the delivery of the key project objectives. 

2.2 Approves the variation in the capital programme to enable the completion of 
the project as detailed in section 8.3.  

2.3 Approves the amendment in funding as set out in 8.5. 

3. Voreda House Business Case 

3.1 The consolidation of office accommodation onto a single site has been an 
ambition of the Council for over a decade. Moving to a single site model was 
necessary not only to enable the organisation to function more effectively, 
culturally and operationally, but more fundamentally because the split site 
provision was not fit for purpose in relation to accessibility, perceived future 
needs and escalating maintenance costs. 

3.2 The Voreda House project is the physical manifestation of this ambition and 
was subject to an in depth development process, involving a number of 
iterations, to ensure alignment with corporate priorities, the emerging local 
government reorganisation (LGR) requirements and the highest possible 
environmental standards to reduce the Council’s carbon footprint and 
operating costs. 

3.3 In particular, the decision relating to the configuration of LGR in Cumbria 
strengthened the need for a local office and service hub in Penrith. The 
chosen east-west configuration of the new unitary councils has resulted in a 
geographically large east authority with significant distances between the 
main service centres in Eden, Barrow and South Lakeland.  Without a fit for 
purpose building location in Penrith the likelihood is that both employees and 
services would be located elsewhere. 

Page  5

Agenda Item 9



 
2 

3.4 In summary, the broad key objectives of the project are: 

3.4.1 A single site for local government operations that is fit for purpose. This is a 
key consideration to secure public sector jobs in Penrith. 

3.4.2 A public service and community hub for Eden residents that is in close 
proximity to service local needs and be accessible to the community. 

3.4.3 Office and meeting space accommodation for members and public sector 
partners to maintain a strong Penrith presence for the new unitary authority 
arrangements. 

3.4.4 A building that achieves the PassivHaus standard in terms of being carbon 
neutral. 

3.4.5 A building that significantly reduces current operating costs. 

4 Progress on Achievement of Objectives 

4.1 On the 12 September 2022, the Westmorland and Furness Shadow Authority 
Cabinet agreed to implement a distributed model for office accommodation 
based on ‘anchor’ buildings in key service locations, namely Voreda House 
(Penrith), South Lakeland House with Kendal Town Hall and County Offices 
(Kendal) and Barrow Town Hall (Barrow). 

4.2 Confirmation that Voreda House has been identified as an anchor building for 
the new authority demonstrates the strength of the business case and delivers 
objective 3.4.1 and 3.4.2 by securing public sector jobs and a public service 
and community hub in Penrith. 

4.3 The project delivers high quality member office and meeting provision 
together with the additional office capacity for public sector partners to 
achieve objective 3.4.3. 

4.4 The outstanding PassivHaus credentials of the project to deliver objective 
3.4.4. 

4.5 The initial revenue savings projections on utilities costs for Voreda House 
over a 25 year period were estimated at £1.02m. All-inclusive cost savings 
were estimated at £6.18m. Given the significant increase in utility costs the 
estimates have been recalculated (August 2022) and utility cost savings over 
a 25 year period are now estimated at £4.8m. All-inclusive cost savings over 
25 years are estimated at £10.7m. This achieves objective 3.4.5 and validates 
the capital investment required for the construction and fit out. 

5 Construction Background 

5.1 Prior to purchase, and recognising that the facility required refurbishment, the 
necessary technical and desk top surveys were completed to the standard 
required for a project of this nature. The surveys are designed to identify, 
without causing undue damage to the building, any defects or issues that 
need to be taken into consideration as part of the transaction. 

5.2 Following the purchase architectural consultants were appointed to develop 
the refurbishment proposals to enable a procurement to be undertaken. 

Page  6



 
3 

5.3 In October 2021, following a procurement process, the Council agreed to 
enter into a contract with Collinson Construction to complete the refurbishment 
of Voreda House as part of the Single Site Programme. 

5.4 Prior to contract signature the necessary due diligence was undertaken 
culminating in a Pre Contract Service Agreement (PCSA) contract being 
signed and in place in December 2021. At this point the turbulence in the 
construction market, due to global economic conditions, was emerging and 
the contract arrangements were designed to mitigate escalating materials and 
labour inflation where possible through implementing a (PCSA). In summary 
the PCSA enabled the contractor to reduce construction risks by completing 
pre contract ground investigations and design works. 

5.5 The overarching construction contract was completed in February 2022 and 
incorporated a target works completion by the end of December 2022. 

6 Construction Issues and Programme 

6.1 The construction programme commenced as planned with site preparation 
works and further site surveys. This was followed by the completion of the site 
compound and boundary fencing. At this point the contractor achieved the 
Considerate Contractors Scheme to demonstrate their commitment to high 
quality construction practices. 

6.2 The second phase consisted of the internal strip out with a focus on recycling 
all of the internal materials in line with the ‘green’ credentials established for 
the building. 

6.3 The third phase was the removal of the external concrete tiles which 
progressed ahead of programme due to the outstanding working practices of 
the contractor. At this point an inspection of the insulation materials situated 
behind the concrete tiles could be completed which identified the presence of 
asbestos. 

6.4 Specialist asbestos removal contractors were commissioned to remove the 
asbestos in line with the relevant regulations. Following the asbestos removal 
a clean air certificate was achieved and construction recommenced but the 
programme was now behind schedule. 

6.5 Removal of any remaining materials could now be completed which fully 
exposed the floor one and two concrete support pillars for inspection. The 
inspection identified that the integrity of each support had been compromised 
by previous building occupants or contractors and required temporary bracing 
to allow the construction to recommence. Steel reinforcement is required as a 
permanent solution which is being progressed but the issue has also impacted 
on programme resulting in additional delays. 

6.6 At this point the exposed concrete support pillars and floors were tested for 
levels of carbonation. When refurbishing a building that contains concrete 
supports and floors it is necessary to test the concrete for levels of 
carbonation prior to completing the works. High levels of carbonation weaken 
the concrete structure which requires treatment by applying a protective 
coating. The tests results identified that carbonation levels require treatment 
on all pillars and floors which also has an impact on programme. 

Page  7



 
4 

6.7 Works were then focussed upon the forming the necessary foundations to 
enable the concrete base to be set to accommodate incorporating the 
undercroft into the building. When excavating the foundations further asbestos 
was uncovered which prevented any programmed works being progressed 
until the specialist contractor could confirm removal and a further clean air 
certificate is issued. This has also created further delays to the programme to 
the extent that the works are now unlikely to be completed until the end of 
March 2023 although the contractor will endeavour to accelerate the 
programme where possible. 

6.8 Given that the building is now stripped to the frame and the excavation works 
are near completion the likelihood of any further abnormalities is minimal. It is 
also clear that the pre purchase and construction surveys could not have 
identified these issues prior to construction. 

7 Construction Market Conditions 

7.1 Inflation in the construction sector is at unprecedented levels fuelled by the 
pandemic and more recently the conflict in the Ukraine. All materials and 
labour are affected and further escalation is being driven by fuel and utilities 
costs. 

7.2 The fluent situation is forcing sub-contractors and suppliers to review their 
prices at shorter intervals so any programme slippage can severely impact 
costs. 

7.3 The contractual arrangements put in place with the contractor were designed 
to mitigate known inflation issues but the further escalation and extension of 
the programme have had a substantial impact on the cost of construction. 

8 Estimated Construction Costs & Funding 

8.1 The construction contract sum included in the overarching contract is £2.9m 
which includes a contingency amount for unexpected construction issues that 
are not accounted for in the contract. 

8.2 The nature and impact of the construction issues, and the associated 
mitigating measures, combined with the unprecedented construction market 
inflation levels, have resulted in costs that have substantially exceeded the 
predicted budget level. 

8.3 In summary the estimated cost of inflation now represents an increase of 
£800k which, when combined with the adjustments for the construction issues 
and extended programme £677K (asbestos £70k, contaminated materials 
£100k, steel bracing £55k, lift £90k, carbonation £200k, electrical feed 
upgrade £25k, design £30k and extended programme £107k results in an 
increased contract sum of £1.47m. 

8.4 The inflationary increase for labour and materials is impacting upon the 
construction industry as a whole and the levels of inflation for the project are 
in line with current industry norms.  

8.5 The funding implications are dealt with firstly through an increase in available 
capital receipts, which generates an additional £500k. There is also an 
adjustment made in the programme, which results in additional funding of 

Page  8



 
5 

£450k. The remainder of the funding can be found from programmed 
slippage, which is reported in the Quarter 2 monitoring report. 

8.6 Given the contract programme position, the in depth analysis undertaken by 
the project team quantity surveyor and the contractor supply chain the 
estimated increase should not require any further revision. 

8.7 When considering the increased construction costs it is important to consider 
these in the context of the substantial revenue savings outlined in section 4.5. 

8.8 On 15 November 2022, Cabinet agreed to recommend to Council a variation 
in the capital programme to enable the completion of the project as detailed in 
section 8.3 and an amendment in funding as set out in 8.5 above. 

9 Policy Framework 

9.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

9.2 This report relates to all Council priorities as the delivery of the scheme 
contributes to the organisation as a whole. 

10 Consultation 

10.1 Broad consultation for the scheme has been undertaken on two occasions to 
secure planning approval. 

10.2 Regular consultation has been ongoing throughout the project development 
phase with both the One Eden Member Working Group and One Eden 
Member Briefings. 

10.3 All staff have been consulted and provided with the opportunity to 
communicate their thoughts and preferences in relation to the overall scheme 
design and their future service and individual requirements. 

10.4 All service areas are represented on the Voreda House Transitional Group 
which is designed to enable full consultation and engagement in relation to 
transitional arrangements and internal building design and fit out. 

10.5 The Shadow Authority are engaged evidenced through Voreda House being 
designated as an anchor building and service location. 

11 Implications 

11.1 Financial and Resources 

11.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

11.1.2 The financial implications are set out in detail within the report. 

Page  9



 
6 

11.2 Legal 

11.2.1 The Council is in contract with Collinson Construction for the completion of the 
refurbishment. If insufficient funds are available to compete the works then the 
legal implications will need to be fully considered. 

11.3 Human Resources 

11.3.1 The Voreda House project will provide a high quality and flexible working 
conditions and collaborative space for existing and future employees, partners 
and customers. 

11.4 Environmental 

11.4.1 The Voreda House project plays a significant role in the existing and future 
authorities’ desire to achieve carbon reduction targets. It is an exemplar 
facility which can set the standard for future accommodation across the 
Shadow Authority. 

11.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity The project design addresses all of the relevant 
equality and diversity requirements to provide a 
solution that not only improves on the existing 
provision but also satisfies the emerging LGR 
requirements. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

The PassivHaus specification provides the 
highest industry standard for occupants and 
users of the facility in relations to air quality.  It 
also achieves a net zero carbon environmental 
standard. From an economic perspective it brings 
an existing building back into use, increases the 
asset value and also significantly reduces the 
current office provision operating costs. 

Crime and Disorder The planned partner and community space will 
enable agencies to work together to tackle crime 
and disorder issues in the most responsive and 
impactful way. The Police are still intending to 
use the facility as a community hub. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

The potential for agencies to work together more 
closely when using the building as a community 
hub will improve service responsiveness for 
Children’s services. 

Page  10



 
7 

11.6 Strategic Risks  

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

Adverse weather 
conditions  

Impact on the 
delivery 
programme 

The next phase of work will be to make 
the building water tight through fitting 
the internal elements of the cladding 
system which will mitigate any weather 
related issues. 

Final planning 
consent 

Final planning 
approval not 
granted 

The drawings and elevations required 
to finalise the planning consent are 
being produced and there are no 
material changes proposed. 

Further cost 
escalation in the 
materials and 
labour supply 
chain 

Budget is not 
sufficient to 
complete the 
scheme 

The indepth analysis of costs in 
relation to economic factors and the 
associated supply chain has created a 
high level of confidence in budget 
requirements. 

Additional capital 
funding is 
unavailable 

Unable to 
complete the 
contract 

No options are available to mitigate the 
additional funding requirement. 

12 Other Options Considered 

12.1 There are no other options available to enable the completion of the 
construction. 

13 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

13.1 To deliver the vision for Voreda House project as a low carbon, fit for purpose 
public service hub for residents of Eden, the rationale for which has been 
strengthened by the outcome of LGR. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 16/11/22 (Deputy) 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 15/11/22 

Relevant Assistant Director 14/11/22 

Background Papers: Single Site Programme – Delivery of Voreda House – 
October 2021 

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Mike Poulter, Single Site Programme Manager 

Page  11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report No: DoR91/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 

24 November 2022 

Leisure Contract Pressures 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider pressures identified by Greenwich 
Leisure Limited (GLL) and consider making an additional one off payment to 
support them given the significant additional energy costs they have borne 
due the current economic circumstances. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Council approve a one off payment of £325,000 to 
GLL in recognition of the additional energy costs that they have borne in 
2022/23.   

2.2 The additional payment to be funded by a combination of earmarked reserve 
(£200k) and general reserve (£125k). 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The Council has worked closely with its leisure services provider GLL 
throughout the Covid19 pandemic where it provided significant support to 
cover their contract losses due to centre closures.   

3.2 The Council recognises that prior to Covid the contract was loss making, but 
GLL had made significant inroads into the size of the deficit, which was at that 
point around £200k. 

3.3 As part of the 2022/23 budget process the Council set aside £200k in an 
earmarked reserve recognising the pressure that GLL were under at the time, 
which was prior to the economic effects currently being faced. 

3.4 We have worked with GLL to consider a number of potential mitigations, 
however many and certainly those that save the most money would also result 
in service reductions. 

3.5 The Council and GLL are committed to maintaining and where possible 
improving the services provided. This is particularly important at this time 
when access to services that support health and wellbeing is critical. 

Page  13

Agenda Item 10



 

 

3.6 Whilst the longer term future of the contract will fall to Westmorland and 
Furness Council it is imperative that EDC passes on a contract that is 
functioning as well as it possibly can.   

3.7 In order to to do this GLL have sought financial support, from the Council, for 
the additional costs of energy for 2022/23 caused by the current inflationary 
impacts in the market. The ask has been through an open book process and 
the total increase is £325k. 

3.8 The impact of not supporting would result in GLL seeking to mitigate through 
measures such as reducing centre opening times and above inflationary 
increases in fees and charges.   

3.9 If approved the earmarked reserve would be used to fund £200k and the 
additional amount met from General Reserves. 

3.10 It should be noted that the proposal is for a one-off payment and not an 
increase in the contract. This therefore does not require a section 24 report to 
Westmorland and Furness Council. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Healthy, safe and secure corporate priority as access to 
leisure services is key part of delivering the Council’s health and wellbeing 
priorities. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 The proposals have been considered and approved by Cabinet. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 The financial implications are set out within the report. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 As consideration is a one of payment there are no contractual implications. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications  

Page  14



 

 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity N/A 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

Maintaining leisure services is an integral part of 
delivering health and wellbeing priorities. 

Crime and Disorder N/A 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

N/A 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That GLL push for 
service reductions and 
possibly centre 
closures. 

Reduction in service 
levels 

Reputational damage. 

Creates an immediate 
issue for Westmorland 
and Furness Council. 

Continue to work with 
GLL to take advantage 
of those mitigations that 
don’t impact on service 
levels. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 The option to not support GLL was considered.  The reasons for dismissing 
this are set out in the report. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 To support GLL to deliver services in 2022/23 and beyond. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) Report Author 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 16 November 2022 

Relevant Assistant Director N/A 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices:  

Contact Officer: Paul Sutton, Interim Director of Resources 

Page  15



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No:  DoR87/22 

Eden District Council 

Council 

24 November 2022 

21-22 Q4 Revenue and Capital Slippage 

Portfolio: Resources 

Report from: Interim Director of Resources 

Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of the report is for Council to approve the slippage in Revenue 
and Capital budgets from 2021-22 to 2022-23.  

2 Recommendation 

The Council is recommended to: 

2.1 Approve the slippage of Revenue budgets of £206k from 21/22 to 22/23 as set 
out in Section 3.5 and endorsed by Cabinet. 

2.3 Approve the slippage of Capital budgets of £1,355k from 21/22 to 22/23 as set 
out in Section 3.11 and endorsed by Cabinet. 

3 Report Details 

 Background 

3.1 The Council set its budget in February 2022. This included budget set aside 
for corporate priorities. 

3.2 The 2021-22 Draft Outturn Report was considered by Cabinet on 18 October 
2022 and Revenue and Capital slippage recommended to be approved by 
Council. 

3.3 Slippage occurs when project spend is delayed due to internal or external 
factors. The slippage mainly falls into the following categories: 

 Revenue spend has been committed to with a third party through a legal 
arrangement (eg contract) but the work has not been done/service provided 
by year end 

 A grant has been awarded but the conditions have not yet been met and 
hence the payment has not yet been made. 

 Revenue spending relating to corporate priority of the Council which has 
been delayed due to internal or external factors 

 Capital projects progressing quicker or slower than originally anticipated 

  

Page  17

Agenda Item 11



 21-22 Revenue Slippage 

3.4 Slippage is proposed of £206k, being only 2% of the full year budget of 
£10,231k. 

3.5 The slippage proposed is: 

 £’000 

Community Fund  35 

Play Areas and Parks – Corporate Priority 20 

Sustainability Fund COP26 – Corporate Priority 40 

Parks and Open Spaces – Contractor Commitment 10 

Economic Development - Grant Commitments 60 

Town Centres - Grant Commitments 27 

Other 14 

 206 

3.6 Community Fund. The Eden District Council Community Fund is for projects 
and events which deliver wider community benefit in Eden. In 2022/23, the 
total available was £110k, however only £75k was allocated. It is anticipated 
that uptake will be higher in 2022-23. 

3.7 Play Areas and Parks. The November 2021 Revised Budget for 2021-22, 
included £100k for improvement to community owned Play areas and Parks. 
This was split £20k in 2021-22 and £80k in 2022-23. Unfortunately the 
creation of the scheme was not completed in 2021-22, however it is 
progressing in 2022-23 and it is therefore recommended to slip this budget 
into 2022-23 to allow the full intended benefit. 

3.8 Sustainability Fund COP26. The November 2021 Revised budget for 2021-22, 
included £200k to increase funding to support communities and Parish and 
Town Councils in implementing zero carbon and biodiversity schemes. This 
was split £40k in 2021-22 with the balance in 2022-23. The Scheme was 
developed and launched in 2022-23 and hence no spend was incurred in 
2021-22. It is recommended to slip this budget into 2022-23 to allow the 
community to receive the full benefit. 

3.9 Parks and Open Spaces. Orders were placed with contractors that due to 
contractor availability were unable to be fulfilled prior to year-end. The works 
went ahead in early 2022-23. 

3.10 Economic Development & Town Centres. Grants were approved by HAZ 
board in February 2022 and due to be paid in September 2022. 

 21-22 Capital Slippage 

3.11 Capital Slippage of £1,355k is proposed as follows: 

 Budget Slippage 

 £’000 £’000 

IT Renewals 123 56 

Development Management Systems 40 19 

Eden Business Park Phase 1 59 59 

Leisure Centre Equipment & Maintenance 464 464 

Single Site – Voreda House 1,250 (198) 

Heart of Cumbria funding 939 209 

Green Business Support Fund 100 100 

Page  18



Green Homes Grant Extension 150 133 

Green Home Exemplar 50 50 

Frenchfield Stadium 100 100 

EV Charging Points Appleby 113 113 

Carbon Reduction Scheme 250 250 

  1,355 

3.12 IT Renewals. There is a rolling programme of IT renewals that was delayed 
partly due to Covid-19. For the programme to be met, ensuring that members 
and officers are equipped to do their roles, this funding must be maintained. 

3.13 Development Management Systems – the implementation of the new 
development management system started in 2021/22 but did not complete. 
The balance of funding of £19k is required to complete the project in 2022-23. 

3.14 Eden Business Park Phase 1 – This project has been delayed into 2022-23. 

3.15 Leisure Centre Equipment & Maintenance – Tenders were sought prior to the 
year-end however contract award for the majority of the spend was post year 
end and hence funding is requested to be slipped into 2022-23. 

3.16 Single Site – Voreda House. Works were slightly ahead of original budget 
phasing by year end and hence the project was overspent in 2021-22 
compared to the budget for that period. 

3.17 Heart of Cumbria Funding – Properties due in March were not delivered to 
Heart of Cumbria until May and hence the loan facility was not required until 
post year end for these properties. 

3.18 Green Business Support Fund – Project has been delayed into 2022-23. 

3.19 Green Homes Grant Extension – Scheme extended into 2022/23. 

3.20 Green Home Exemplar – Total scheme budget remains unchanged however 
there have been planning delays including relating to neutrient neutrality. 

3.21 Frenchfield Stadium – Following approval of the funding by EDC, final 
negotiations are now underway with the Football Foundation for the balance 
of the funding required.  

3.22 EV Charging Points Appleby – delays have been incurred due to the Flood 
prevention works on site. 

3.23 Carbon Reduction Scheme – full budget unchanged but timing of project has 
been re-scheduled. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the Sustainable corporate priority. 

Page  19



5 Consultation 

5.1 No consultation has taken place. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019.  

6.1.2 The Revenue slippage will be funded from the provisional outturn underspend 
of £311k. 

6.1.3 The Capital slippage does not involve any changes to total spend, but only to 
timing and hence there is no change to the funding. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 There are no legal implications. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 There are no human resource implications. 

6.4 Environmental 

6.4.1 There are no environmental implications. 

6.5 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity No implications 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

No implications 

Crime and Disorder No implications 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

No implications 

6.6 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

That the Council is 
unaware of its financial 
pressures and fails to 
plan adequately 

Council is financially 
unsustainable 

Regular monitoring 
reports provided to 
members 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 No other options have been considered. 

Page  20



8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The Cabinet is recommended to review this report to ensure that they are 
aware of the financial position of the Council to inform decisions. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 16 November 2022 (Deputy) 

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 15 November 2022 

Relevant Assistant Director 16 November 2022 (AD Finance) 

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Marianne Bastille, Assistant Director Finance 

Page  21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	9 Single Site Programme
	10 Leisure Contract Pressures
	11 Q4 2021/2022 Revenue and Capital Slippage

